

## KINGDOM ACTIVATING DECLARATIONS

Powerful Prayers to Declare and to Engage the **Kingdom System** in Your Life



# KINGDOM ACTIVATING DECLARATIONS

Powerful Prayers to Declare and to Engage the **Kingdom System** in Your Life

THIRD FDITION

By Charlie Lewis, © 2025

A Resource from Kingdom School and Ministry



Website: KSAM.NET Email: INFO@KSAM.NET

#### INTRODUCTION

#### WHY I CREATED THESE DECLARATIONS

The creative power of words is amazing. It has been said that our words are "a self-fulfilling prophecy." What we say – the words that come out of our mouth – are powerful and they are important. What we allow in our spirit and in our mind determines the words that we speak. We recite from the data that we place or allow into our spirit and into our mind. What we say must be intentional, calculated, and predetermined. To speak what the world, the kingdom of darkness, says around us can be devastating. We are told to program (renew) our mind by washing it with the water of our God's Word. We are to declare the reality of His Kingdom by repeating what His Word says about us and about Him, and to do so out loud. The power is not in reading, but in declaring out loud. There is great power in doing this.

We repeat out loud His Word (the Kingdom Activating Declarations) until our mind remembers what He has said, completely through our memorization. We do not stop there. We continue to repeat His Words out loud until they become internalized in our spirit and they become who we are. His Words remind us in our situations, in our circumstances, and in our relationships that we are who He says that we are, and He is who He says that He is.

This process is life changing and calls all of the power of Heaven to the earth to impact our situations, our circumstances, and our relationships. We are engaging heaven and the angel armies of God.

#### HOW TO USE THESE DECLARATIONS

- 1. Carry them with you everywhere you go until the internalization process is complete.
- 2. Repeat them out loud as often as you can, at least once a day. I personally recite them when on the treadmill, jogging, walking, travelling, or at any time I can do so safely. If you can record yourself saying them, and then listen and recite with the recording, it is very helpful.
- 3. Personalize them for yourself, your family, and your situations, circumstances, and relationships.
- 4. Create new Kingdom Declarations as our God gives them to you. Write them down and internalize them.
- 5. Be sensitive to the Spirit of God. For no apparent reason He will bring these declarations to your spirit, and you will begin to declare them out loud. They will encourage you in the Lord, and you will find yourself rejoicing, or deeply praying and interceding at His direction and for His purposes.

#### **CONTENTS**

#### KINGDOM UNDERSTANDING AND ENGAGEMENT:

	THIS IS WHO I AM	5
	KINGDOM-SYSTEM RELATIONSHIP	7
	KINGDOM-SYSTEM UNDERSTANDING	9
	KNOW WHAT YOU BELIEVE	11
	KNOW WHO YOU ARE	13
	YOU HAVE GOD'S FAVOR	14
	GOD'S FAVOR DECLARED AND ENGAGED	15
	PRAYER OF COMMITMENT TO THE WORD	16
	CHANGE YOUR ENVIRONMENT	18
	OVERCOMING FAITH DECLARATION	21
FIVI	E IMPORTANT QUESTIONS:	
22	IDENTITY - DECLARATION: WHO AM I?	
24	ORIGIN - DECLARATION: WHERE DID I COME FROM?	
	PURPOSE - DECLARATION: WHY AM I HERE?	26
	MORAL COMPASS - DECLARATION: WHAT ARE THE STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND BEHAVIOR THAT AM TO LIVE BY ON THIS PLANET?	28
	FOREVER HEREAFTER - DECLARATION: WHAT HAPPENS TO ME WHEN MY SPIRIT LEAVES MY BODY?	
	/ERNMENT AND GOVERNANCE; ETERNALITY – RNITY AND OUR ETERNALNESS:	
	DUETERONOMY 28 DECLARATION	31
	FAITH DECLARATION – GOD'S REDEMPTIVE PLAN FOR GOVERNANCE	33
	HUMANITY'S MULTI-DIMENSIONAL POWER CONNECTION DECLARATION 36	
	CHARACTERISTICS OF GOD'S REDEMPTIVE PLAN FOR GOVERNANCE 3	39

#### THIS IS WHO I AM

To live your calling as a Kingdom Citizen, you must know and you must creatively declare God's Word about yourself. You are who God says you are, not what the Defeated Satan says about you. Declare out loud who God says that you are:

<u>I am strong</u>. - God gives power and strength to His people (Psalm 68:35).

<u>I am victorious.</u> - Every child of God overcomes the world and achieves victory through faith (1 John 5:4-5).

**I am valued.** - God bought me with a very high price (1 Corinthians 6:20).

<u>I am unique.</u> - God made every part of me, in all my intricate detail, and knit me together in my mother's womb (Psalm 139:13). I am one of a kind and like no one else.

<u>I am God's workmanship.</u> - God has made me a masterpiece and prepared good works for me to do (Ephesians 2:10).

<u>I am loved.</u> - God loves His people and draws them close to Him with an everlasting, unfailing love (Jeremiah 31:3).

<u>I am important.</u> – I am chosen. I am a member of the royal priesthood and member of a Holy Nation, God's very own possession. I show others the Goodness of God because He has called me out of darkness and into His marvelous light (1 Peter 2:9).

<u>I am forgiven</u>. - He has removed my sins as far as the East is from the West. I am clean and I am forgiven (Psalm 103:12).

<u>I am a new creation</u>. - Anyone who belongs to Christ has become a new person. The old life is gone and a new life has begun (2 Corinthians 5:17).

<u>I am protected.</u> - My God will not let me stumble. He who watches over me will not slumber (Psalm 121:3).

<u>I am empowered.</u> – I can and I do all things through Christ who strengthens me (Philippians 4:13).
<u>I am chosen</u> Jesus chose me and appointed me to go and to produce lasting fruit, so that the Father will give me whatever I ask for using His name (John 15:16).
<u>I am family.</u> - I am not a stranger or foreigner to God's kingdom but I am a citizen along with all of His Holy people. I am a member of His Family (Ephesians 2:19).

#### KINGDOM-SYSTEM RELATIONSHIP

Father Lord, in the name of Jesus, the (my family, heirs and descendants) family, all of our Heirs and all of our Descendants forever, we declare that above all else, we seek the Kingdom of God, Your Plan, Your System and Your righteousness—Your way of doing and being right First above anything else. We trust that as we are single-minded and wholehearted about pursuing and engaging your Kingdom, all else will be added to us in abundance. (Matthew 6:33)

We declare and we agree that You have decided that the time is fulfilled, and the Kingdom-System has come. It is available to us and anyone else who enters into a living relationship with you, our God. Anyone who fellowships with You, who spends time with You, and who follows Your Kingdom ways. We have changed the way that we think and what we believe so that we can experience the fullness of Your Kingdom-System both in relationship and in practical benefit. (Mark 1:15)

We believe that the secrets of the Kingdom-System of our God have been given to us. They are not hidden. You have revealed them to us, and we can fully live and function completely in Your Kingdom Government now, on the Earth (Mark 4:11)

We welcome the Kingdom-System of our God in our lives as a little child receives what is given to them. This is the day of our dominion. Authority has been given to us and as Jesus Himself did, we are free to live as a Kingdom-System Citizen now while we function in this world. (Mark 10:15)

We can and we do fully experience the full nature, power and authority of the Kingdom-System in our lives; this includes

being right filled to ove	four power and authority and Your way of doing and t, having the peace that passes understanding, being erflowing with joy in the Holy Spirit, and we see God's work in us, through us, and all around us. (Romans 14:7; 1 s 4:20)
	Kingdom be as strong in my life on the Earth, as it is in dom in Heaven.

#### KINGDOM-SYSTEM UNDERSTANDING

God, You created the heavens and the earth and everything in them. You created man and woman and You gave us dominion and authority. You instructed us to rule over and to manage the earth and everything on the earth. Everything on earth belonged to You God, because You created it all, and because You owned everything, You could do with it as You wished. You chose to give humanity authority and dominion over all the earth. (Genesis 1:1, 26-28; John 1:2-3; Psalm 115:16)

Man gave the dominion and authority that You, God had given him to rule over the earth to Satan. (Genesis 3:6) It was disobedience that separated human beings from God. What man lost through disobedience was his relationship with God, and all dominion and authority are relational. Therefore, humanity lost dominion and authority. God is the God of relationship; He created humanity for that purpose. Relationship requires fellowship. Fellowship requires time spent together. Time spent together requires the commitment to give the time. There are no shortcuts.

No relationship equals no authority nor dominion. God Himself came to earth in the person of Jesus Christ, Emanuel- God with us. You God, engaged and defeated Satan and took back the dominion and the authority that man had given to Satan. Having defeated Satan, You God gave access to that power back to man. (Matthew 16:19; Luke 10:19). While You God were on earth in the person of Jesus, You established and You delivered the System whereby human beings can live on the earth in complete victory and in a living, breathing, flowing relationship with You our living God. That system is the Kingdom System of our God. The Kingdom

is Your complete and Your total order for everything. (Matthew 12:27-28; Luke 16:1-15)

All governments and authorities have requirements and commands that must be obeyed in order to be in the correct or right relationship with the ruling authority of that government in order to receive the benefits offered by that government. These values and principles are clearly shown and they are easy to understand. They are written in the book of our Constitution given to Humanity by our God and our King. We know this book as the Scriptures, or the Bible. This is our Great Book of Learning and the Great Book of Kingdoms.

#### **KNOW WHAT YOU BELIEVE**

Father God, the \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ family, all of our Heirs and all of our Descendants Forever, we Declare our allegiance and our passion for Your Word. We will shout with a loud voice and we will loudly proclaim Your goodness, and we will tell everyone of Your worthiness to be praised continually.

We commit our lives today, and everyday to obey Your Word and to follow Your instructions. We work to free those who are wrongly imprisoned. We lighten the burdens of those who work with us in the fields of labor that You have given to us. We secure freedom for those who are oppressed by the Kingdom of Darkness. We remove the chains that bind humanity. We share the food from our table with those who are hungry. We provide shelter to those who are without homes. We give clothing to those in need. We do not hide from our relatives who are in need.

Because we keep Your commands and because we walk in Your ways, our salvation is as dependable as the dawn. Our salvation is sure and our salvation is trustworthy. Our wounds heal quickly, Lord. You, Father God, have given us Your Godliness to lead us forward, and Your Glory protects us from behind.

When we call out to You, Lord, You answer quickly and you declare that You are always present to hear and to answer our petitions and our requests, and you do so Lord, <u>you answer quickly and You answer lavishly</u>.

Your light, Holy Spirit God, shines brightly out of our spirits into the darkness that is around us, and that darkness becomes as bright as the noon day sun. You, Holy Spirit God, guide us continually;

You saturate us with water when we are dry. You abundantly restore our strength. We are like well-watered gardens and ever-flowing springs. We rebuild the deserted ruins of our cities and rebuild the walls of our cities for protection. We restore the homes that have been battered and torn by the deceits of the defeated Satan.

We maintain our relationship with You, Father, through continual fellowship. We spend time with You, our Father; You are our delight and our heart's desire. Nothing that we desire compares to our passion for you. We live, we walk, and we have our being in the wonderful inheritance you have graciously provided to us through relationship. You bring great honor to us, Lord God.

We declare Your Goodness with a loud voice. We shout loudly about Your Faithfulness and we loudly proclaim Your unfailing Mercy. We loudly shout praises to Your name forever.

You are the true and the living God. You are the only wise God, our Father. There is no other God. Glory, honor, power, praises, and dominion continually be to You Father, now and forevermore. Amen.

#### **KNOW WHO YOU ARE**

Father, in the name of Jesus, the \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ family, all of our Heirs and all of our Descendants Forever, we Declare our allegiance to You. You are the true and living God. You are the only wise God our Father. There is no other God. You are our complete source and our complete supply. We will never look to anyone or to anything else for our provision. You give us power and you give us strength to gain wealth and to be successful, that You may establish Your Covenant with us. We are Victors!

We walk in victory over all the forces of the kingdom of darkness through our faith in You, Jesus. You are the Son of God, and You are God Himself. You made each of us unique and special and like no one else. You have given us a unique purpose that is good and that is full of hope. You recreated us in Your image and in Your likeness. You have forgiven us and birthed us anew through Your own blood and through our faith in You. Our old life is gone. We are now new creations through Your workmanship. We can and we do all things through You Lord Jesus. You have assigned and you have charged the Angel Armies of God to keep us safe on land, in the air, and on the sea. In every situation, in each circumstance, and in all of our relationships, the Angel Armies of God prevent us from being harmed, from being injured and from stumbling.

You have chosen us and made us Your friends and Your family. You love us with an everlasting, unfailing love. You have made us important in Your kingdom as Your chosen people. We rule on the earth as Royal Priests in Your courts. We are the apple of Your eye and Your very own treasured possession. We live to declare Your Glory and to display Your Power and to give You Praises on Earth as they are given to You in Heaven. May Your kingdom come, may

Your will be done in all of Creation on earth as it is in Your Kingdom in Heaven.

#### YOU HAVE GOD'S FAVOR

Our God has generously provided all that we need. We always have everything that we need and there is plenty left over to share with others. (2 Corinthians 9:8)

Through Your favor Lord, you caused the Egyptians to look favorably on the Israelites, and they gave the Israelites whatever they asked for. They plundered the Egyptians of their wealth! God, You are the same today, You do not change. (Exodus 12:36) God You are generous!

Lord, You were with Joseph in the prison and You showed Him your faithful love. LORD, You made Joseph a favorite with the prison warden. (Genesis 39:21) In every situation we are made to triumph through Christ Jesus. Lord, You go before us and prepare our way. You follow behind us and protect our rearguard. You never leave us. We are never away from You.

Lord, You declared that as we are obedient, we grow in wisdom and in stature and in favor with You, God and with all the people. (Luke2:52) Thank you because Your face shines upon us.

Lord, your people did not conquer the land with their swords; it was not their own strong arm that gave them victory. It was your right hand and your strong arm and the <u>blinding light from your face that helped them</u>, because you loved them. (Psalm 44:3) They were set apart as we your people today are set apart for You. Thank you, Father, that we are called and that we are designed according to Your purpose.

Lord, arise and have mercy on Zion; The time to favor her, yes, the set time, has come. (Psalm 102:13) We receive your favor. We are strong and we do exploits through our God.

### GOD'S FAVOR DECLARED AND ENGAGED

Father, God, we the	Family, all of our Heirs
and all of our Descendents Forever, we Dec	lare that we receive
and that we live in your Favor in our lives to	day. We are your
righteousness God. We are recipients of you	ur Covenant Kindness
and Your Covenant Favor.	

We thank you because your Favor surrounds us like a shield everywhere we go, in everything we do, and with everyone we meet. We expect good things to manifest in our lives today and everyday because your Divine favor is upon us. Your Favor in our lives is immeasurable, unlimited and Your favor lavishly abounds towards us. Father, we thank you that your special Favor produces miraculous increase, promotion, restoration, honor, increased assets, greater victories, prominence, recognition, preferential treatment, petitions granted, policies and rules changed, and battles won in which we do not have to fight.

The spotlight of Your Favor is on our lives now. Thank You for causing your face to shine upon us and giving us an abundance of Favor with You and with man.

This is the Day and the Year of our Favor, in Jesus' name. Amen.

### PRAYER OF COMMITMENT TO THE WORD

Father, in the name of Jesus, the \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ Family, all of our Heirs and all of our Descendants Forever, we declare that We commit ourselves today to walk in Your Word. We recognize that Your Word is integrity itself —Your Word is steadfast, Your Word is sure, Your Word is eternal—and we trust our lives to the provisions of Your Word. Your word is our governing agreement with the Government of Heaven.

You have sent Your Word forth into our spirits and into our minds. We let Your Word dwell in us richly in all wisdom. Your Word does not depart out of our mouth. Your Word is all that we speak. We meditate in Your Word day and night so that we may diligently act upon Your Word. Your Word is the incorruptible seed that is abiding and that is living in our spirits and in our minds. Your Word is growing mightily in us now; Your Word is becoming dominant and Your Word is producing Your nature and Your life in me.

We thank You, Father, that Your Word is our Counsel - Your Word gives us insight and your Word gives us direction; Your Word is our shield - Your Word forms a hedge of protection around us that the Defeated Satan cannot penetrate; Your Word is our buckler - Your Word keeps us upright and connected to You, You are our complete Source and our complete Supply; Your Word is our powerful weapon in battle that always gives us victory. Your Word is the lamp unto our feet and the light unto our path. Your Word

makes our way straight before us, and we never ever stumble or fall because our steps are ordered by Your Word.

We recognize the strategies and the deceits of the Defeated Satan, and We put a stop to them by speaking Your Word out of our mouths in faith.

We are confident, Father, that You and Your perfect plan for our lives are at work in us, to lead is to both want to do and then to do your Good Pleasure. We exalt Your Word. We hold Your Word it in the highest esteem. We give Your Word first place in our lives. We boldly and We confidently declare that our spirits and our minds are fixed upon You and we are established on the solid foundation of the Living Word of our God. Amen.

#### CHANGE YOUR ENVIRONMENT

Father God, the \_\_\_\_\_\_ Family, all of our Heirs and all of our Decedents Forever, we Declare that You as the Lord Jesus Christ are Lord over our spirits, our minds, and our bodies. (Philippians 2:9-11)

Jesus, You are made unto us to be wisdom, righteousness, sanctification, redemption, and the full restoration of the Kingdom-System of our God in our lives, both in relationship and in practical benefit. We can and we do all things through You, Lord Jesus, You are our strength. (1 Corinthians 1:30; Philippians 4:13)

Lord, You are our shepherd, <u>we do not want</u>. You, Father God, supply all of our need according to Your riches in glory in Christ Jesus. Your glory is all around us, and we reach out into your Kingdom and pull into ourselves all that we have need of in every area of our lives. (Psalm 23; Philippians 4:19)

We do not fret or have anxiety about anything. We do not have a care. (Philippians 4:6, 1 Peter 5:6, 7)

We are the Body of Christ. We are redeemed from the Curse because you Lord Jesus bore our sickness and You carried our diseases in Your own body. By your stripes we are healed. We forbid any sickness or any disease to operate in our body. Every organ, every tissue, every fiber and cell of our being functions in the perfection in which You, Father God created it to function. We honor You God and we bring glory to You in our Bodies. (Galatians 3:13, Matthew 8:17, 1 Peter 2:24, 1 Corinthians 2:16)

We have the mind of Christ Jesus, and we hold the thoughts, the feelings, and the purposes of Your Spirit and of Your Mind. (1 Corinthians 2:16) We are Believers and not Doubters.

We hold fast to our confession of faith. We decide to walk by faith and to practice faith. Our faith comes from hearing Your Word, Lord Jesus.

Jesus You are the Author and the Developer, the One who finishes and the One who completes our faith. (Hebrews 4:14; 11:6; 12:2; Romans 10:17) Your love, Father God, has been poured out in our Spirits and in our minds by the Holy Spirit God, and Your love dwells in us continually and richly. We keep ourselves in the Kingdom of light, in your love, and in Your Word, and the wicked one touches us not. (Romans 5:5; 1 John 4:6)

We tread upon serpents and scorpions and <u>over all of the power of the enemy</u>. We take our shield of faith and we quench every fiery dart of the Defeated Satan. Greater are You Lord God who is living in us and who is working through us than he that is in the world. (Psalm 91:13; Ephesians 6:16; 1 John 4:4; 5:18)

We are delivered from this present evil world. We are seated with you Christ Jesus in heavenly places. We reside in the Kingdom of God's Dear Son. The law of the Spirit of Life in Christ Jesus has made us free from the Law of Sin and Death (Galatians 1:4; Ephesians 2:6; Colossians 1:13; Romans 8:2).

We do not fear, because you, Father God, because you have given us the spirit of power, and your love, and we operate from a sound mind. God, You are on our side. (2 Timothy 1:7; Romans 8:31)

We hear and we recognize the voice of the Good Shepherd. We hear and we know our Father's voice, and the voice of a stranger we will not follow. We roll our works upon You, Lord Jesus. We commit and we trust them completely to You. You cause our thoughts to become agreeable with Your will, and so are our plans established and our plans succeed. (John 10:27; Proverbs 16:3)

We are world over-comers Father God because we are born of You. We represent the Father and Jesus' will. We are useful members of the body of Christ. We are Your workmanship, Father God, recreated in Christ Jesus. You, Father God, are continually and effectively at work in us to lead us to both want to do and then to do Your good pleasure. (1 John 5:4-5; Ephesians2:10; Philippians 2:13)
We let Your Word dwell in us richly. You have begun a good work in us and You will continue until the Day of Your Reappearing.
Praise be to Your name, our Father. You are always faithful and we are always thankful.

#### **OVERCOMING FAITH DECLARATION**

Lord we believe, we accept, and we confirm Your Word.

<u>Greater are You</u> who is living in and who is working through us than he that is in the world (1 John 4:4).

We tread upon serpents and scorpions and over all of <u>the power of</u> <u>the enemy - the Defeated Satan</u> (Luke 10:19).

We take our shield of faith and <u>we quench every fiery dart of the Defeated Satan.</u> (Ephesians 6:16).

Our God keeps us in perfect peace, because our minds stay/remain on Him, <u>because we trust Him completely</u> (Isaiah 26:3).

We can and we do all things through Christ Jesus who strengthens us and who is our strength. (Philippians 4:13).

We are crucified with Christ; it is no longer we who live but <u>Christ who lives in us</u> (Galatians 2:20) We are Resurrected with You, Jesus.

Whatever <u>we bind</u> on earth is bound in heaven, and whatever we <u>loose on earth</u> is loosed in heaven (Matthew 16:19) We have the Keys to the Kingdom Authority.

God forgives all of our sin. He heals all our diseases. He redeems our lives from the pit. He crowns us with Faithful Love and with tender compassion. He satisfies us with Goodness. He renews our youth like the eagle (Psalm 103:1-5). We are overcomers. We are strong.

Whatever We ask for in prayer, We believe We have received it. <u>It</u> is ours NOW, because of our Faith! (Mark 11:24).

#### **IDENTITY**

#### **DECLARATION: WHO AM I?**

Father God, I am your workmanship. I am Your Masterpiece. I am your work of art. I am Your poem written for all of humanity to read and to know who you are through me. Before I was born into time, you creatively designed me for a unique and for a special purpose. That purpose is based in who I am eternally, forever. I came into time with gifts, talents, and abilities. You gave me the anointing to achieve great things in your Kingdom for You, for myself, for my Family and for all of humanity. I am special. There is no one like me. All of humanity is blessed by my participation in Your Kingdom Plan and by my contribution of the things that you personally designed for me to deliver and to provide for humanity.

My success in life is not confined to nor can it be contained by my earthy lineage. I am your created light. I am of divine origin and divine lineage. I have new birth by you, Jesus, and I am filled with you Holy Spirit God. Your light through me is placed in a prominent place so that men can see the moral excellence and praiseworthy, noble, and good deeds that You display through me, so that humanity will recognize, they will honor, they will praise and they will glorify you and your Son Jesus Christ, who is God. You, Father, Son and Holy Spirit God are my delight and my heart's desire. Nothing that I desire compares to my passion for You.

I am who you say that I am. I have what you say that I have. I can, and I will do what you declare that I can do. I know, and I

understand that my personal success in life is based on my living relationship with you the living God and not on temporary things that are confined to this planet. You, Your Kingdom and Your way of doing and being right are my priority and my first consideration in all that I do. I know that as I do this, you add the temporary "things" for my use on this planet that bless my in-time experience for me, for my Family, and for humanity.
Thank you, my God and my Father, My Creator and my Designer. You have made me your treasured possession and your heart's delight. Bless you, my father. Bless you now and forever. I am Your creation and I am who you have designed me to be.

#### **ORIGIN**

### DECLARATION: WHERE DID I COME FROM?

Father, the Charlie and Fran Lewis Family, all of our Heirs and all of our Descendants forever, we declare that the earth is not where we began, and the earth is not where we will end. We were with you in the "before-here" component of our eternity before we entered time and before our here and our now began. We know Father, that when our eternal spirit leaves our earthly body and departs time, we will return to be with you, in your presence, forever.

Our origin and our Destination are fixed Lord. We are the product of your Spirit and your mind. Before you formed our body in the womb to house and to give physical expression to our spirit, you separated us and set us apart for your divine purposes on the earth. Before we were born, like prophets you charged us to declare your goodness, to tell of your mercy and to display your grace to everyone. As you said Father, "we are not from or of this world as you are not from this world."

Before we entered time you knew us and you approved of us as your chosen instruments for your Kingdom. We were with you and we were made by You. When you prepared us to enter time, you placed in us the skills, the talents, the gifts, and all of the abilities that we will ever need. You gave us the anointing and the favor to live and to function successfully on this planet while we are in-

time. We lack nothing for our success. You have given us everything that we need. We are a contributing asset to You, to ourselves, to our Families, to humanity and to Your Kingdom. Our life makes a difference in the outcomes of the lives of others. We provide the gifts that You have given to us for all of humanity for their engagement for their success.

Father, we are your handiwork, your workmanship, your created and designed masterpiece. Through our faith in you we are recreated in Christ Jesus. We are born anew that we may do those good works which you planned and prepared beforehand for us that we should walk in and that we should live the good life that you prearranged and made ready for us to live before we were born. Every day of our life was written in your book before our first day began. No matter where we go you are there to guide and to direct us.

We thank You that our ability to contribute is not confined or restricted by our earthly DNA, but we are empowered by our divine impartation that we have received from You that provides all that we need to be a blessing to You, to ourselves, to others and to Your Kingdom. Thank you that in all that we do, we bless You, and we honor You, and we deliver and display Your goodness for everyone to know and to enjoy.

The plans that you have for us are for good and they are full of hope. Glorify Yourself through us, Father, and thank You that everyone sees, and that all know that You are our God, our Father and our Friend, Now and Forever. May your Kingdom come, may your will be done on the earth as it is in your Kingdom in Heaven.

#### **PURPOSE**

#### **DECLARATION: WHY AM I HERE?**

Thank you, Father that the \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ Family, all of our Heirs and all of our Descendants forever, we know, and we understand, who we are, where we came from and we know that we are here on this planet and in-time because we are Deployed to the Earth with an eternal assignment that came directly from You that we are to live out on this planet. The living out of our assignment will always honor and glorify You. It will bless our Families, bless humanity and increase your Kingdom on the earth.

Father, we understand how that You have uniquely designed us for a specific purpose, and we are thankful. We know and we fully understand that we are eternal, and that we will never die. That is how you designed us. We choose to live our lives "in-time" based on our eternity and on our personal eternalness. All of our thoughts, all of our actions and all of our desires are considered from the vantage of our eternalness. Our every decision is founded in eternity and in our eternalness. You are eternal, Your Word is eternal, Your Kingdom is eternal, and we are eternal. This is the platform You have chosen for us, and this is the position that we have chosen for our life, now and forever.

You have declared that You have planted our purpose in our spirits and in our minds as a divinely implanted sense of purpose. Our purpose is found in our eternity and nothing under the sun and in-time will satisfy our longing for our purpose other than

being in a living relationship with You alone and following and pursuing that design. You are our God and You are our Creator.

We spend time with You and we fellowship with you, spirit to Spirit and breath to breath. You communicate with us continually. As we acknowledge you and as we are thankful, you guide our every step. We do not try to figure things out for ourselves, but we bring everything to You first. In all that we do, we know, we recognize, and we acknowledge You, First. You direct us and you make our path straight and plain to us. We begin everything that we do with you. You cause our thoughts to become agreeable with your will and our plans are established and our plans succeed.

Father, You are our desire, and our heart's delight. Nothing that we desire compares to you. We follow Your plan for us that was recorded/written in Your book before the foundation of our time. We are not predestined. We are pre-ordained. We choose. Our life follows our choices. Our outcomes follow our choices. Before our first day began, and before our first moments had passed You had plans for us. We are fulfilled, and we are satisfied operating in the Mountain(s) of our Culture where you have designed for us to impact society for your Kingdom. We are designed to operate in the Mountain(s) of \_\_\_\_\_\_\_.

#### **MORAL COMPASS**

# DECLARATION: WHAT ARE THE STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND BEHAVIOR THAT I AM TO LIVE BY ON THIS PLANET?

Father, the \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ Family, all of our heirs and all of our descendants forever, we are thankful that we know who we are. We know where we came from and we know why we are here, our purpose for being. We are thankful that You have shown us how we are to live on this planet and how we are to conduct ourselves in order to be in a right relationship with You and with Humanity. You have not hid this knowledge from us, and You have not made this difficult for us to know.

You have declared that we are to do what is right, to love mercy and to walk humbly before You, our God. Right is not determined by what man says is right, or by what man's laws say is legal. The standard which we operate by is what You declare to be right and what You declare just. You have told us that in Your Kingdom, You are more pleased when we do what is right and just than when we offer You sacrifices. We, Father God, choose every day, all day to walk in Your ways and to follow Your instructions. You Father, bring glory to us and You bless us in all that we do. People see us and they know that we are Your chosen people. We are royal priests and a holy nation in Your Kingdom. We are Your very own

treasured possession. Our lives display Your goodness and bring great glory and honor to You, our God and our King. We have been brought out of darkness into Your marvelous light. You are our

passion and our heart's delight. Nothing that we desire compares to our passion for You.

Because of our relationship, our fellowship and our continual communion with You Lord, You guide our every thought, each of our actions and all of our desires. We walk with you and we work with You — we watch how You do life. You are teaching us the unforced rhythms of grace. You do not lay anything heavy or ill-fitting on us . We keep company with You and we learn how to live freely and lightly. We walk in a free flowing, spirit to Spirit and breath to breath connection with You and our lives operate and are directed by the unforced rhythms of Your grace that come directly from You. This is our choice for our conduct and for our behavior. We enjoy, and we display Your goodness for everyone to see.

Father, we are more than conquerors. In every situation we are made to triumph in You. Greater are You who are living in and working through us than he who is in the world. Our lives are lived in victory and not in defeat. Our enemy, the Defeated Satan is beneath our feet. We crush his head with our heel. When he comes after us from one direction, you send him scattering in seven directions. We live to bring glory to You, to bless our Families, to bless all of humanity, to grow Your Kingdom in the Earth and to honor You in all that we do. Praises to Your name forever.

# OUR FOREVER HEREAFTER DECLARATION: WHAT HAPPENS TO ME WHEN MY SPIRIT LEAVES MY BODY?

We thank You and we praise You our Father. The \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ family, all of our Heirs and all of our Descendants forever, we know who we are. We know where we came from and why we are here on this planet and in-time. We know, and we follow your instructions on how we are to live effectively and efficiently while we are on our time journey. We know who You are. We know who You are to us, and we know who we are to You. We know, and we are fully aware that our body is temporary and that the real us, the eternal us, is our spirit. Our spirit lives forever. We understand that our spirit gives life to our body. When our spirit leaves our body, our body will cease to live. When our spirit leaves our body and departs time, we return to You our Maker and our Designer to be with You in eternity without time, in our forever hereafter.

While we are in-time, we pursue our eternity and our eternalness through a living and forever relationship with You. All of our thoughts, all of our actions, and all of our desires are measured and evaluated by Your Kingdom, Your System and Your Plan, and by Your way of doing and being right for us. We know, and we understand that this is the method that You have provided for us to conduct our lives for now and forever.

Thank you, our God and our Father for Your kindness and for Your generosity. You are good, and Your mercy endures forever. Your blessings and Your favor overtake us. We are thankful, and we bless Your name, in Jesus' name. Praises to Our God Forever!

#### **DUETERONOMY 28 DECLARATION**

Father, the \_\_\_\_\_\_ Family, all of our Heirs and all of our Descendants forever, we declare that we obey your Word and that we keep your Commands. Father, You set us high above all the Nations of the World. We experience all of Your blessings continually and lavishly.

We are blessed in the City. We are blessed in the Country. Everywhere that we go we are blessed. We are blessed in the Fields of Labor (all of the work of our hands) that You have given to us. Our Children are blessed (Our birth Children / Our spiritual and our Business Children). Our crops are blessed (all of the business and industry) produce lavishly and grow exponentially. Our herds and our flocks are blessed (the Companies and the individuals and the Groups with whom we work). Our fruit baskets are full and our bread bowls overflow. (We have neither lack nor deficiency of provision) We bring to you the first fruits of all of our labors Father, because they belong to you our God. We walk under the open windows of Heaven. You pour out blessings greater than we can contain. We share the blessings that we receive from You our God with those around us who are in need. We do so under the direction of the Holy Spirit God.

We are blessed wherever we go, wherever we come from, everywhere that our names are mentioned we are blessed. We are the largest contributors in the World to the spreading of the Good News of the Gospel of the Kingdom of our God. Billions of Men and Women, Boys and Girls are freed from the tyranny and from the oppression and from the chains of slavery from the

Kingdom of Darkness and they come into right relationship with You, our God, and You become their God.

When our enemies attack us from one direction you send them scattering in seven directions. If they persist You destroy them before our very eyes. A thousand may fall at our side and ten thousand may fall at our right hand, but it will not come near us.

Lord you guarantee blessing on everything that we do, and you fill our storehouses with grain (from abundant, lavish harvests). You bless us oh Lord in the lands that you have given to us.

Lord, we obey your commands and we walk in your ways. You establish us as your holy people, Lord, and all of the Nations of the World see that we are a people claimed by the Lord and they stand in awe of you our God.

Lord you bless us with prosperity in the lands you have given to us (spiritually, mentally, physically -our health Lord -, emotionally, relationally and financially.) You bless us with many children (naturally and spiritually and in business), numerous livestock (those who produce and reproduce for the labors that you have given to us) and we harvest an abundant, lavish return from abundant crops. Lord you send rain (moisture / nourishment) at the proper time (when it is needed) from your rich treasury in the heavens and you bless all the work that we do. Father we lend to many nations, but we never ever need to borrow from them. We listen to Your commands Lord, and we are careful to obey You.

You make us the Head and not the Tail, we are above and not beneath. We crush the defeated Satan's head with our heel. Greater are You Lord God who is living in and working through us than he that is in this present evil World.

Lord, we remain connected to You through continual fellowship and through continual communion, Spirit to spirit and breath to breath. We live, we walk, and we have our being in Your Kingdom.

## FAITH DECLARATION – GOD'S REDEMPTIVE PLAN FOR GOVERNANCE

The scriptures are our governing agreement with the government of Heaven. The scriptures contain the values, the principles, and the established precedents that I agree to use to govern myself. The scriptures are my Constitution. I am what they say that I am, I have what it say that I have, and I can and I will do what the scriptures say that I can do. I have full and complete access to all that the scriptures provide.

My God is the true and the living God, and He is Creator of all things. He is the Owner and Lord of the heavenly realm and the earthly realm. He does not live in temples made by man. He supplies life and breath and all things to every living being. He does not lack a thing that we mortals could supply for Him, for He has all things and everything He needs.

From one man, Adam, He made every man and woman and every race of humanity, and He spread us over all the earth. He sets the boundaries of people and nations, determining their appointed times in history.

He has done this so that every person would long for God/Him, feel their way to Him, and find Him – for He is the God who is easy to discover.

It is through Him that we live and function and have our identity; Our lineage comes from Him. We do commerce and we conduct business with the Kingdom government of Heaven's realm using the currency of our Faith. Faith is the currency of Heaven's realm. There is a canvas in our mind where we paint the picture of our faith for our Creator and our God to fulfil, to complete, and to activate in our lives. We call and bring Heaven to earth to impact and to direct our situations, our circumstances, and our relationships, **through the verbal declaration of our faith** that reflects the picture we paint on the canvas in our mind.

We never doubt nor question what our outcomes are to be. We follow the directions and the instructions from our Constitution. Our priority and our first consideration in all things is the government of Heaven delivered to the earth and aligning with His way of doing and being right. When our God was on the earth in the person of Jesus Christ, He demonstrated clearly how His government operates. How did he deal with sickness and disease? He healed them all. How did he deal with shortage? He multiplied what was there so that after the need was met, there was more left over than they began with - loaves and fish, wine at the wedding, and the widow's oil. How did He deal with lack? He always provided what was needed by engaging Heaven's realm and Heaven's supply - Abraham and ram for the sacrifice, gold for taxes in the mouth of the fish, abundant catch of fish for the disciples, who had fished and caught nothing. How did He teach us to deal with earthly circumstances that threatened humanity? He engaged the greater authority of Heaven's realm and caused the lesser authority of the earthly realm to change - calmed the storm, walked on water, took complete authority over all the forces of the kingdom of darkness and freed humanity from their tyranny and their oppression.

Jesus taught us to pray for His Kingdom, His government, His rule, His way of doing and being right, **at our directions**, to come to the earth and to make the earth like it is in heaven. There is no sickness nor disease, no lack nor shortage, no illegitimate

authority threatening our well-being in Heaven. The same is true in the Kingdom government of our God on the earth.

When God Himself came to the earth in the person of Jesus Christ, He brought and delivered His government and all of its power, all of its authority, all of its joy, and all of its victory to the earth for humanity to engage for their well-being and for their ability to live on the earth in the victory that is <u>described in our Constitution</u>. The Kingdom government of God was made for man, and man was made for the Kingdom government of our God. Nothing else will fit, and nothing else will work. We expect a different experience and dynamic when Christ returns to the earth, but we will not get sidetracked. There is nothing stronger nor more powerful on the earth right now, than the redemptive, Kingdom government of our God. Through our redemption, our reborn spirit, we have full and complete access to all of Heaven's realm.

#### What is the challenge you are facing now?

Is it sickness, disease, or a virus? Is there a shortage of provision for you to accomplish your God-given task? Do you lack something that is necessary for you to complete your Kingdom assignment? Is there an illegitimate, unauthorized force hindering you from walking in the victory promised in our governing agreement?

Whatever it is, paint the picture on the canvas in your mind of the established precedent in our God's redemptive Plan for how you address your situations, your circumstances, and your relationships. Now accept this as His will and His plan for you in your challenge. Declare His plan out loud and state your personal belief for the outcomes our Constitutional agreement provides for us. Walk in the reality of that provision. Thank our God, glorify Him, praise Him and engage Heaven through the currency of your faith.

In the name of Jesus, Amen.

## HUMANITY'S MULTI-DIMENSIONAL POWER CONNECTION DECLARATION

Father, the Charlie and Fran Lewis Family, all of our heirs and all of our descendants forever, we declare that You are good, that Your mercy endures forever, and that You have provided everything that we need for us to live a successful and prosperous life on the earth in overcoming victory through our relationship with You. We lack nothing to complete our assignment. We have access to everything that we need. You have prepared a perfect plan for our lives that was written in Your book before we were born and before our time experience began. You have provided everything that we will ever need in this life before we entered time and before we began our time journey.

We know and we recognize that all of Your creation, everything You have created, operates in a system that functions in Your perfect order. The universe, all of the planets, our bodies, and everything that You create operates in a very accurate, and extremely precise order. The order and the operating systems are built into them by You. We do not have to create, to develop, or to manufacture their order and their system because you have designed them as absolutes and they operate independently from any outside force by Your design. Their authority and their power is placed in them by You. You are their complete source and their complete supply. You are their Creator and You have designed them and You have designed us according to Your plan. All of creation has Your prints all over it. You have made all men everywhere able to see for themselves and to recognize You in creation and to know and to understand your systems.

The Kingdom of God is Your total order and functions as humanity's operating system for man's total needs. Nothing is left out. The Kingdom is complete and lacks nothing that humanity will ever need. You have placed all power and all authority in Your Kingdom and you have given and encouraged us as humanity, to live our lives fully engaged continually in Your Kingdom realm. Going after and pursuing and engaging Your Kingdom is to be our priority and our first consideration in everything. Nothing is to be left out of this process. This was Your message when You were on the earth in the person of Jesus Christ. Your Kingdom must be accessed by our engaging Your higher and Your more powerful realm, heaven's realm. We cannot see Your Kingdom, nor engage its power and its authority in any other manner. We began our Kingdom relationship with You Father, through the New Birth of our spirit through our faith in You and our belief and our acceptance of the provision of your blood sacrifice. Lord, we will not abandon the dimension and the realm of how our relationship began, and try to do life without continually, engaging Heaven just like we did when we were born again.

We have believed and we have accepted a living relationship with You through our faith, and we are legally, registered Citizens of Heaven. As such we have full access to all of Heaven's realm. We have already come near to You, God in a totally different realm, the Zion-realm where You are, where You live, and where You are at. For we have entered the city of the Living God, which is the New Jerusalem in heaven! We have joined the festal gathering of myriads of angels in their joyous celebration!

You, our God, have promised and <u>it is certain</u> that, "Once and for all You will not only shake the systems of the world, but also the unseen powers in the heavenly realm!"

Now this phrase "once and for all" clearly indicates to us the final removal of the things that are shaking, that is, the old order (the

world systems) so only what is unshakeable will remain. Because we have received our rights to an unshakable kingdom, we are extremely thankful and we offer You, our God, the purest worship from our spirit that delights Your heart. We lay down our lives in absolute surrender, filled with awe. Because You, our God are a holy, devouring fire!

Lord, this is our promise and this is what we see manifesting before our very eyes.

Lord you have declared that the hour has come and the time is now that You desire that we as true worshippers must worship you out of or from our spirits, the eternal component of who we are now and forever. Lord we commit ourselves today and every day to obey your instructions.

We make Your Kingdom realm, Your way of doing and being right for us, our priority and our first consideration in everything that we are and in all that we do. This is the first thing that we do and this is where we begin with everything in our lives. We engage Heaven and Heaven's realm first. We operate in all the wisdom, all the knowledge, all the power, all the authority, all the joy and all of the victory that you have placed there for us.

The gift of Your Kingdom is Your total order for our total need in every area of our lives. Whatever we need, we reach out into Your Kingdom and pull into our earthly realm all that we need in every area and in all of the experiences of our lives.

#### Your Kingdom is always more than enough.

Glory to You, our God forever. You reign, Lord! You reign now and You reign forever! You are generous and you are kind. You are lavish and you are faithful in your love and in your passion to us. We are thankful and we praise Your name forever.

## CHARACTERISTICS OF GOD'S REDEMPTIVE PLAN FOR GOVERNANCE

- The Kingdom of God is all-inclusive. Nothing is left out.
  There is an application and plan for every facet of our lives.
  There are directions for all centers of influence Government, Economy/Business, Media, Family,
  Education, Arts and Entertainment, and Religion. There are
  operating instructions and guidance for our engagement
  for redemptive, Kingdom success in each area of influence
  on each mountain of society and culture.
- 2) God's plan is designed for self-governance. Our Constitution, the scriptures, provide the values, the principles, and the established precedents that we agree to use to govern ourselves. They are complete and nothing needs to be added to them.
- 3) Our authority and power for governance comes from another dimension, Heaven's realm. We cannot see, understand, nor engage the Kingdom using earth-born senses nor earth-born talents and their abilities. We must engage Heaven and employ the power and the authority that is there. This is only possible through engaging our reborn spirit. We are given complete and total access to all that is there through redemption and our new birth.
- 4) Redemption occurs/happens when we engage Heaven and establish an active living relationship with our Creator God and gain access to His dominion, through our New Birth. From that time and place forward, forever, we are to make that eternal relationship primary and our first consideration in everything we are and in all that we do.

- 5) All of our decisions and all of our choices are interactive and have a predetermined outcome we can know before we make our selection for action.
- 6) A redemptive relationship with Jesus Christ is our God's complete plan for our governance. Restoration and Governance are provided operationally through the redemptive plan of God, the Kingdom of God. The Kingdom of God is God's total plan for humanity/man's total need.
- 7) Man is designed for governance by the Kingdom of God, and the Kingdom of God is designed for man's governance. Nothing else will work.
- 8) Our relationship with our God is our method for success during our life on the earth. Everything in our life must be accessed through Heaven's realm and our multidimensional awareness and the application and the engagement of Heaven's realm. The Kingdom of God is humanity's multi-dimensional power connection to Heaven's realm.

#### WHAT IS THE KINGDOM OF GOD?

The Kingdom of God is the government of Heaven delivered to the faith. The Kingdom provides the pattern/the plan/the system we follow for guaranteed success. This Kingdom success is eternal and transcends time. The Kingdom was delivered to the earth by God Himself in the Person of Jesus Christ, Emmanuel - God with us. The Kingdom of God is provided to humanity for their engagement for their successful governance of their outcomes. This system always begins with self-governance. The scriptures provide the values, the principles, and the established precedents that we use to govern ourselves. The scriptures are completely about government and governance. The scriptures are our Constitution and our governing agreement with the government of Heaven. When we understand the scriptures are about our governing relationship with the government of Heaven, we recognize they are not religious regulations about compliance and enforcement. They are rather an interactive system of competing and conflicting forces where our choices of conduct and behavior and their corresponding actions contain the inertia that takes us to a predetermined outcome. The redemptive Kingdom system spells out for humanity the correct choice to the alternative systems of this world. The Kingdom system operates by design. If no one sees or if no one knows about our actions, the outcomes are the same, and they are guaranteed.

The scriptures are the Word of God from God. They are true and they are certain. They are steadfast, they are sure, and they are eternal. We can and we must trust our lives to their provisions. The scriptures are living decrees of agreement, and they are alive and active. They are always completely interactive and operate from an "if/then" perspective. Our choice and corresponding action is the "if" component of the agreement. The "then" response follows our chosen "if" by design. The scriptures as our governing agreement clearly present, for our understanding, the dynamics of design we

use for an informed choice of action for the outcomes we desire. We are what they say we are, we have what they say we have, we can and we will do what they say we can do. We have full and complete access to all the scriptures provide.

#### "My people are being destroyed because they don't know me." Hosea 4:6 NLT

"The first thing that comes to your mind when you think of God is the most important thing about you." - A.W. Tozer

"Anything God has ever done, He can do again. Anything God has ever done anywhere, He can do here. Anything God has ever done for anyone, He can do for you." - A.W. Tozer

#### KINGDOM ACTIVATING DECLARATIONS

Words are so powerful. The words we speak from our mouth becomes a self-fulfilling prophecy. What we allow in our spirit and in our mind determines the words that we speak. We are told to program (renew) our mind by washing it with the water of our God's Word. We are to declare the reality of His Kingdom by speaking in agreement with what His Word says about us and about Him, and to do so out loud. The power is not in reading, but in declaring out loud the words we believe. We repeat out loud His Word (the Kingdom Activating Declarations) until they become internalized in our spirit and they become who we are.



Charlie Lewis is an entrepreneur, author, teacher, and speaker whose passion is teaching people how they can lead successful, fulfilled lives, and find their ultimate purpose through God's kingdom. Charlie has compiled his favorite declarations in this booklet to help you renew your mind. May this help you as you bless humanity, glorify God, and expand the Kingdom of God.

#### **CONNECT WITH US ONLINE:**

Website: www.KSAM.Net

Facebook: https://www.facebook.com/clewiskingdomsystem

Instagram: https://www.instagram.com/charlielewis2094

Twitter: https://twitter.com/clewisinfo

This Book is a Resource from Kingdom School and Ministry

